

**BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF SOUTH CAROLINA  
COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA**

CM #18-11

April 4, 2018

2:05 ~ 2:27 P.M.

**COMMISSION MEMBERS PRESENT:** Swain E. WHITFIELD, *Chairman*; Comer H. ‘Randy’ RANDALL, *Vice Chairman*; and COMMISSIONERS John E. ‘Butch’ HOWARD, Elliott F. ELAM, Jr., Elizabeth B. ‘Lib’ FLEMING, Robert T. ‘Bob’ BOCKMAN, and G. O’Neal HAMILTON

**COMMISSION MEMBERS ABSENT:** —

ADVISOR TO COMMISSION: Joseph Melchers, Esq.  
GENERAL COUNSEL

PRESENTING AGENDA: James Spearman, Ph.D.  
EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT TO COMMISSIONERS

**STAFF PRESENT:** Jocelyn G. Boyd, Esq., Chief Clerk/Administrator; F. David Butler, Esq., Senior Counsel; Josh Mingos, Esq., and David W. Stark, III, Esq., Legal Advisory Staff; Douglas K. Pratt, Thomas Ellison, and John Powers, Technical Advisory Staff; Janice Schmieding and Afton Ellison, Clerk’s Staff; and Jo Elizabeth M. Wheat, CVR-CM/M-GNSC, Court Reporter.

**TRANSCRIPT / MINUTES  
OF  
COMMISSION BUSINESS MEETING**

---

***PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF SOUTH CAROLINA***

101 EXECUTIVE CENTER DRIVE  
COLUMBIA, SC 29210

POST OFFICE BOX 11649  
COLUMBIA, SC 29211

[WWW.PSC.SC.GOV](http://WWW.PSC.SC.GOV)

**I N D E X**

	<b>PAGE</b>
<b><u>NEXT COMMISSION MEETING SET</u></b> .....	3
<b><u>UTILITIES AGENDA</u></b> .....	3
<b><u>TRANSPORTATION AGENDA</u></b> .....	16

*In accordance with S.C. Code § 30-4-80(E), the Public Service Commission hereby certifies that it has notified all persons, organizations, local news media, and all other news media requesting notification of the time, date, place, and agenda of this public meeting, by posting a copy of the Notice in its principal office, by e-mailing such Notice to all who request same, and by posting the Notice on the Commission's official Internet website.*

P R O C E E D I N G S

1  
2           **CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Please be seated. I'll  
3 call this Commission Meeting to order and ask that  
4 we pause for a moment of silent meditation.

5                   [**Brief pause**]

6                   Amen.

7                   Dr. Spearman.

8           **DR. SPEARMAN:** Mr. Chairman and other  
9 Commissioners, our first order of business would be  
10 to set the next Commission Meeting. If we stay on  
11 our regular schedule, it would be at 2 in the  
12 afternoon on Wednesday, April 11th.

13           **CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** April 11th. Sounds good,  
14 Dr. Spearman.

15           **DR. SPEARMAN:** Mr. Chairman and Commissioners,  
16 on the Utility Agenda, Item 1 is a Petition to  
17 Intervene in Docket No. 2018-35-C.

18           **COMMISSIONER ELAM:** Mr. Chairman?

19           **CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Commissioner Elam.

20           **COMMISSIONER ELAM:** Mr. Chairman, I move we  
21 grant the Petition to Intervene in Docket No. 2018-  
22 35-C, filed on behalf of Sprint Communications  
23 Company, LP. So moved.

24           **CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Thank you, Commissioner  
25 Elam.

26                   Commissioners, you've heard Commissioner  
27 Elam's motion. Is there any discussion?

28                   [**No response**]

29                   Hearing none, all those in favor of  
30 Commissioner Elam's motion, please, say "aye."

31           **COMMISSIONERS:** Aye.

32           **CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Any opposed?

1  
2  
3  
4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25  
26  
27  
28  
29  
30  
31  
32

[No response]

Motion carries.

Dr. Spearman.

**DR. SPEARMAN:** In Item 2, Docket No. 2018-91-G, this is an Agreement for gas service with standby.

**VICE CHAIRMAN RANDALL:** Mr. Chairman.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Commissioner Randall.

**VICE CHAIRMAN RANDALL:** Mr. Chairman, in Docket 2018-91-G, I move that we approve the Agreement for Transportation Service with Firm Gas Standby between South Carolina Electric & Gas Company and Equity Resource Partners, LLC. ORS has no objection to this. So moved.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Thank you, Commissioner Randall.

You've heard Commissioner Randall's motion. Is there any discussion?

[No response]

If not, all those in favor, please, say "aye"?

**COMMISSIONERS:** Aye.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Any opposed?

[No response]

Motion carries.

**DR. SPEARMAN:** Item 3, Docket No. 2018-2-E, which is the SCE&G fuel case, we have a motion from the South Carolina Solar Business Alliance to bifurcate issues, specifically the PR-2 rate and the avoided costs.

**COMMISSIONER BOCKMAN:** Mr. Chairman?

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Commissioner Bockman.

**COMMISSIONER BOCKMAN:** I have a motion I'd

1           like to make in connection with this matter. It  
2           wouldn't be a Commission Business Meeting if I  
3           didn't have a lengthy motion, and I'm afraid this  
4           is another one of those, so if you'll bear –

5                               [Laughter]

6                       **CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** You go right ahead,  
7           Commissioner Bockman.

8                       **COMMISSIONER BOCKMAN:** – with me. Thank you,  
9           Mr. Chairman.

10                      Mr. Chairman, on March 26th, we received a  
11           Motion to Bifurcate Issues from the South Carolina  
12           Solar Business Alliance, in Docket No. 2018-2-E.  
13           The Motion requests that certain matters be removed  
14           from consideration in this fuel proceeding.  
15           Specifically, the Alliance asks us to separate the  
16           issues in SCE&G's PR-2 Rate update and any proposed  
17           changes requested to the avoided cost methodology  
18           from the rest of the issues.

19                      The reason for the request is, essentially,  
20           that due process is not being afforded because of  
21           the procedural schedule. The motion argues that  
22           the Alliance has had insufficient time to address  
23           SCE&G's proposed change to its avoided cost  
24           methodology in this case. However, Docket No.  
25           2018-2-E was established in October 2017 and a  
26           Notice of Hearing and Prefile Testimony Deadlines  
27           was issued and noticed no later than December 17,  
28           2017. The Notice of Hearing explicitly states that  
29           the avoided costs will be considered in the case.  
30           Moreover, this is consistent with our prior  
31           practice. For several prior annual proceedings,  
32           SCE&G has consistently included avoided costs in

1 its PR-2 Rate, and updated that rate during the  
2 fuel proceedings, exactly as it proposed to do now.

3 I would note that, in our Order 2016-297, in  
4 Docket No. 2016-2-E – which, like 2017-2-E, is an  
5 annual SCE&G fuel case in which the Alliance was a  
6 party – stated that, quote, “In accordance with Act  
7 236 of 2014, any adjustments to the PR-1 or PR-2  
8 tariff should be considered as part of the  
9 company’s annual fuel proceeding,” unquote.

10 Additionally, S.C. Code Annotated Section 58-27-  
11 865(A)(2)(c) requires us to include avoided costs  
12 under PURPA as a part of fuel costs related to  
13 purchased power.

14 Likewise, the Alliance did not challenge our  
15 decision that SCE&G’s proposed changes to avoided  
16 cost methodology and updates to PR-2 should be  
17 considered in the 2018 fuel case. As a result, the  
18 Alliance is barred from seeking the same relief  
19 which was previously rejected in Order No. 2018-55,  
20 in Docket No. 2017-2-E.

21 Mr. Chairman, any due process concern must be  
22 examined carefully to make sure that all parties  
23 are given an adequate opportunity to honor their  
24 rights under the law. In this instance, the motion  
25 before us fails to convince me that such rights  
26 have been violated. Of course, avoided cost, which  
27 is required by statute to be considered in fuel  
28 proceedings, largely results in the PR-2 schedules.  
29 Therefore, both the PR-2 schedule and avoided cost  
30 matters have been incorporated into these fuel  
31 proceedings in the past. Further, the motion today  
32 is made by a party that was also a party to those

1 proceedings.

2 Given all these circumstances, Mr. Chairman, I  
3 move that we deny the Alliance's motion.

4 **CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Thank you, Commissioner  
5 Bockman.

6 Commissioners, you've heard Commissioner  
7 Bockman's detailed motion. Any questions of  
8 Commissioner Bockman, or is there any discussion of  
9 his motion?

10 [No response]

11 Well, hearing none, all those in favor of  
12 Commissioner Bockman's motion, please, say "aye."

13 **COMMISSIONERS:** Aye.

14 **CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Any opposed?

15 [No response]

16 Motion carries.

17 Dr. Spearman.

18 **DR. SPEARMAN:** Item 4, Docket No. 2017-370-E,  
19 AARP has petitioned to intervene.

20 **COMMISSIONER ELAM:** Mr. Chairman?

21 **CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Commissioner Elam.

22 **COMMISSIONER ELAM:** Mr. Chairman, I move we  
23 grant the Petition to Intervene in Docket No. 2017-  
24 370-E, filed on behalf of the AARP. So moved.

25 **CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Thank you, Commissioner  
26 Elam.

27 You've heard Commissioner Elam's motion. Are  
28 there any questions of Commissioner Elam, or any  
29 discussion regarding his motion?

30 [No response]

31 If not, all those in favor, please, say "aye"?

32 **COMMISSIONERS:** Aye.

1  
2  
3  
4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25  
26  
27  
28  
29  
30  
31  
32

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Any opposed?

[No response]

Motion carries.

**DR. SPEARMAN:** Mr. Chairman and Commissioners, Items 5, 6, 7, and 8 are Petitions to Intervene in Docket No. 2018-1-E. Item 5 is a Petition on Nucor Steel South Carolina, Item 6 is South Carolina Coastal Conservation League and Southern Alliance for Clean Energy, 7 is on behalf of South Carolina Solar Business Alliance, and 8 is on behalf of Southern Current. We can take them separately or together.

**COMMISSIONER HAMILTON:** Mr. Chairman.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Commissioner Hamilton.

**COMMISSIONER HAMILTON:** Mr. Chairman, I would take Items 5 through 8 together, and I would move that we grant the Petitions to Intervene in those Items 5 through 8. So moved, sir.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Thank you.

You've heard Commissioner Hamilton's motion to grant the intervenor status in Items 5 through 8. Is there any discussion?

[No response]

If not, all those in favor, please, say "aye"?

**COMMISSIONERS:** Aye.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Any opposed?

[No response]

Motion carries.

**DR. SPEARMAN:** Item 9, Docket No. 2018-9-E, Solar Business Alliance's Petition to Intervene.

**COMMISSIONER FLEMING:** Mr. Chairman.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Commissioner Fleming.



1  
2  
3  
4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25  
26  
27  
28  
29  
30  
31  
32

**COMMISSIONER FLEMING:** I move to grant the Petition to Intervene in Docket No. 2018-9-E, filed on behalf of South Carolina Solar Business Alliance, Incorporated. I so move.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Thank you, Commissioner Fleming.

You've heard Commissioner Fleming's motion. Is there any discussion?

[No response]

Hearing none, all those in favor, please, say "aye"?

**COMMISSIONERS:** Aye.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Any opposed?

[No response]

Motion carries.

**DR. SPEARMAN:** In Item 10, Docket No. 2018-72-E, we have a Petition to Intervene filed on behalf of Wal-Mart and Sam's East.

**COMMISSIONER FLEMING:** Mr. Chairman.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Commissioner Fleming.

**COMMISSIONER FLEMING:** In Docket No. 2018-72-E, I move to grant the Petition to Intervene filed on behalf of Wal-Mart, Incorporated, and Sam's East, Incorporated.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Thank you.

You've heard Commissioner Fleming's motion. Is there any discussion in this item?

[No response]

If not, all those in favor of Commissioner Fleming's motion, please, say "aye."

**COMMISSIONERS:** Aye.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Any opposed?

1  
2  
3  
4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25  
26  
27  
28  
29  
30  
31  
32

[No response]

Motion carries.

**DR. SPEARMAN:** Item 11, Docket No. 2017-370-E, we have a Motion for Admission Pro Hac Vice for John B. Coffman.

**COMMISSIONER ELAM:** Mr. Chairman?

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Commissioner Elam.

**COMMISSIONER ELAM:** Mr. Chairman, I move we grant the Motion for Admission Pro Hac Vice for John B. Coffman, Esquire, filed on behalf of AARP. The filing fee has been paid. So moved.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Thank you, Commissioner Elam.

You've heard Commissioner Elam's motion. Is there any discussion?

[No response]

All those in favor of Commissioner Elam's motion, please, say "aye."

**COMMISSIONERS:** Aye.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Any opposed?

[No response]

Motion carries.

**DR. SPEARMAN:** In Item 12, Docket No. 2018-1-E, again, we have a Motion for Admission Pro Hac Vice of Michael K. Lavanga.

**COMMISSIONER BOCKMAN:** Mr. Chairman?

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Commissioner Bockman.

**COMMISSIONER BOCKMAN:** In connection with this matter, I would move that we grant the Motion for Admission Pro Hac Vice for Michael K. Lavanga, Esquire, filed on behalf of Nucor Steel South Carolina, a Division of Nucor Corporation. The

1 filing fee has been paid, Mr. Chairman. I so move.  
2 **CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Thank you, Commissioner  
3 Bockman.  
4 You've heard Commissioner Bockman's motion.  
5 Are there any questions?  
6 [No response]  
7 Hearing none, all those in favor, please, say  
8 "aye"?  
9 **COMMISSIONERS:** Aye.  
10 **CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Any opposed?  
11 [No response]  
12 Motion carries.  
13 Dr. Spearman.  
14 **DR. SPEARMAN:** Mr. Chairman and Commissioners,  
15 Items 13 and 14 are Petitions to Intervene in  
16 Docket No. 2018-2-E: 13 is filed on behalf of the  
17 Solar Business Alliance and 14 is filed on behalf  
18 of South Carolina Coastal Conservation League and  
19 Southern Alliance.  
20 **COMMISSIONER HOWARD:** Mr. Chairman.  
21 **CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Commissioner Howard.  
22 **COMMISSIONER HOWARD:** I move we grant the  
23 Motion to Admit Pro Hac Vice Benjamin Snowden,  
24 filed on behalf of South Carolina Solar Business  
25 Alliance, and Katherine Chiles Ottenweller, filed  
26 on behalf of South Carolina Coastal Conservation  
27 League and the Southern Alliance for Clean Energy.  
28 The filing fees have been paid for both of these.  
29 So moved, Mr. Chairman.  
30 **CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Thank you, Commissioner  
31 Howard.  
32 You've heard Commissioner Howard's motions

1  
2  
3  
4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25  
26  
27  
28  
29  
30  
31  
32

regarding Items 13 and 14. Are there any questions or is there any discussion regarding either one of those items?

[No response]

If not, all those in favor of Commissioner Howard's motion, please, say "aye."

**COMMISSIONERS:** Aye.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Any opposed?

[No response]

Motion carries.

**DR. SPEARMAN:** Item 15, Docket No. 2018-84-E, South Carolina Electric & Gas is requesting acceptance for filing of a Renewable Purchase Power Agreement.

**VICE CHAIRMAN RANDALL:** Mr. Chairman.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Commissioner Randall.

**VICE CHAIRMAN RANDALL:** I move that we grant the acceptance for filing of the Renewable Power Purchase Agreement between South Carolina Electric & Gas Company and the TWE Bowman Solar Project, LLC. So moved.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Thank you, Commissioner Randall.

You've heard Commissioner Randall's motion. Is there any discussion?

[No response]

If not, all those in favor, please, say "aye"?

**COMMISSIONERS:** Aye.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Any opposed?

[No response]

Motion carries.

**DR. SPEARMAN:** Item 16, Docket No. 2018-60-E,

1  
2  
3  
4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25  
26  
27  
28  
29  
30  
31  
32

Sallie Saldano Complaint against South Carolina Electric & Gas. We have a Motion to Dismiss.

**COMMISSIONER HOWARD:** Mr. Chairman.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Commissioner Howard.

**COMMISSIONER HOWARD:** In Docket No. 2018-60-E, I move we grant the Motion to Dismiss. It's unopposed as Ms. Saldana did not respond. So moved, Mr. Chairman.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Thank you, Commissioner Howard.

You've heard Commissioner Howard's motion. Is there any discussion?

[No response]

If not, all those in favor, please, say "aye"?

**COMMISSIONERS:** Aye.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Any opposed?

[No response]

Motion carries.

**DR. SPEARMAN:** Item 17, Docket No. 2018-25-E, a request for approval of Energy Service Agreement between Columbia Energy, LLC, and DAK Americas, LLC, and a request for confidential treatment of the agreement.

**COMMISSIONER BOCKMAN:** Mr. Chairman?

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Commissioner Bockman.

**COMMISSIONER BOCKMAN:** I move that we approve the Energy Services Agreement – the ESA – between Columbia Energy, LLC, and DAK Americas, LLC, and grant confidential treatment to the agreement. The parties assert that the commercially sensitive and proprietary information contained in the ESA and the highly competitive nature of the industry

1  
2  
3  
4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25  
26  
27  
28  
29  
30  
31  
32

entitle the ESA to protection under the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act. I so move.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Thank you, Commissioner Bockman.

Commissioners, you've heard Commissioner Bockman's motion. Is there any discussion?

[No response]

If not, all those in favor, please, say "aye"?

**COMMISSIONERS:** Aye.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Any opposed?

[No response]

Motion carries.

**DR. SPEARMAN:** Item 18, Docket No. 2017-381-E, Palmetto Utilities has a motion for modification of its rate schedule as a result of the changes in the tax law.

**VICE CHAIRMAN RANDALL:** Mr. Chairman.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Commissioner Randall.

**VICE CHAIRMAN RANDALL:** Mr. Chairman, I move that we grant the request of Palmetto Utilities, Inc., and Palmetto Wastewater Reclamation, LLC, to include a tax multiplier provision to their approved rate schedules. Such a multiplier will place the burden of taxes on contributions in aid of construction – or CIAC – on those who make the CIAC and not on all customers of the utilities. The federal Tax Cut and Jobs Act provides that CIAC will no longer be treated as contributions to capital, which is not taxable, but will be treated instead as ordinary income, which is taxable.

ORS does not object, Mr. Chairman.

So moved.

1  
2  
3  
4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25  
26  
27  
28  
29  
30  
31  
32

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Thank you, Commissioner Randall.

You've heard Commissioner Randall's motion. Is there any discussion?

[No response]

Hearing none, all those in favor of Commissioner Randall's motion, please, say "aye."

**COMMISSIONERS:** Aye.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Any opposed?

[No response]

Motion carries.

**DR. SPEARMAN:** In Item 19, Docket No. 2018-2-E, we have a request for confidential treatment of the direct testimony of Devi Glick.

**COMMISSIONER HAMILTON:** Mr. Chairman.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Commissioner Hamilton.

**COMMISSIONER HAMILTON:** Mr. Chairman, I'd move we grant confidential treatment to the direct testimony of Devi Glick. This testimony was prepared with confidential information from the company. So moved, Mr. Chairman.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Thank you, Commissioner Hamilton.

Commissioners, you've heard Commissioner Hamilton's motion. Are there any questions?

[No response]

If not, all those in favor, please, say "aye."

**COMMISSIONERS:** Aye.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Any opposed?

[No response]

Motion carries.

Dr. Spearman, we're back to you.

1                   **DR. SPEARMAN:** Mr. Chairman and Commissioners,  
2                   that completes the Utility Agenda.

3                   On the Transportation Agenda, Items 1 through  
4                   11 are new Applications. We can take them together  
5                   or separately.

6                   **COMMISSIONER HAMILTON:** Mr. Chairman.

7                   **CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Commissioner Hamilton.

8                   **COMMISSIONER HAMILTON:** Mr. Chairman, I will  
9                   take them together, and I would move that we grant  
10                  the requests for new Applications in Items 1  
11                  through 11.

12                 **CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Thank you, Commissioner  
13                 Hamilton.

14                 You've heard Commissioner Hamilton's motion in  
15                 Items 1 through 11. Are there any questions  
16                 regarding Commissioner Hamilton's motion?

17                                 [No response]

18                 Hearing none, all those in favor, please, say  
19                 "aye."

20                 **COMMISSIONERS:** Aye.

21                 **CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Any opposed?

22                                 [No response]

23                 Motion carries.

24                 **DR. SPEARMAN:** Mr. Chairman and other  
25                 Commissioners, Items 12, 13, 14, and 15 are  
26                 requests for extensions of time. Items 12 and 13  
27                 are requests for extensions of time to comply with  
28                 rules and regulations; Items 14 and 15 are requests  
29                 for extensions of time for filing reports. We can  
30                 take them together or separately.

31                 **VICE CHAIRMAN RANDALL:** Mr. Chairman.

32                 **CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Commissioner Randall.



1  
2  
3  
4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25  
26  
27  
28  
29  
30  
31  
32

**VICE CHAIRMAN RANDALL:** Mr. Chairman, I'll take them all at the same time. I move that we grant the Applications for Extensions of Time in Items 12 through 15. So moved.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Thank you, Commissioner Randall.

You've heard Commissioner Randall's motion. Is there any discussion?

[No response]

Hearing none, all those in favor of Commissioner Randall's motion regarding Items 12 through 15, please, say "aye."

**COMMISSIONERS:** Aye.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Any opposed?

[No response]

Motion carries.

**DR. SPEARMAN:** Mr. Chairman and other Commissioners, Items 16, 17, 18, and 19 are requests to cancel Class C Certificates. We can take them together or separately.

**COMMISSIONER HOWARD:** Mr. Chairman.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Commissioner Howard.

**COMMISSIONER HOWARD:** I will take them all together. I move we grant the requests to cancel Class C Certificates in Items 16, 17, 18, and 19. So moved, Mr. Chairman.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Thank you, Commissioner Howard.

You've heard Commissioner Howard's motion. Is there any discussion?

[No response]

If not, all those in favor, please, say "aye"?

1  
2  
3  
4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25  
26  
27  
28  
29  
30  
31  
32

**COMMISSIONERS:** Aye.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Any opposed?

[No response]

Motion carries.

**DR. SPEARMAN:** Mr. Chairman and Commissioners, Item 20, 21, and 22 are requests to amend Certificates. Item 20 is a request to amend for a name change, 21 is a request to amend the passenger restriction, and Item 22 is also a request for a name change. We can take them together or separately.

**COMMISSIONER BOCKMAN:** Mr. Chairman?

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Commissioner Bockman.

**COMMISSIONER BOCKMAN:** Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I would propose that we take these items together, and I would move that we grant the requests for the amendments requested in those items.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Thank you, Commissioner Bockman.

You've heard Commissioner Bockman's motion in Items 20, 21, and 22. Are there any questions of Commissioner Bockman?

[No response]

Hearing none, all those in favor, please, say "aye"?

**COMMISSIONERS:** Aye.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Any opposed?

[No response]

Motion carries.

**DR. SPEARMAN:** In Item 23, Docket No. 2014-331-T, AA Greenville Transportation is requesting

1  
2  
3  
4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25  
26  
27  
28  
29  
30  
31  
32

suspension of Certificate.

**COMMISSIONER FLEMING:** Mr. Chairman.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Commissioner Fleming.

**COMMISSIONER FLEMING:** In Docket No. 2014-331-T, I move to grant the request of AA Greenville Transportation, LLC, to suspend their Class C (Charter) Certificate No. 8954-B until April 8, 2019.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Thank you, Commissioner Fleming.

You've heard Commissioner Fleming's motion. Is there any discussion?

[No response]

If not, all those in favor, please, say "aye"?

**COMMISSIONERS:** Aye.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Any opposed?

[No response]

Motion carries.

**DR. SPEARMAN:** In Item 24, Docket No. 2017-378-T, Julia E.T. Poole, doing business as Allntym Transit, requesting to withdraw Application.

**COMMISSIONER ELAM:** Mr. Chairman?

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Commissioner Elam.

**COMMISSIONER ELAM:** Mr. Chairman, I move we grant the request of Julia E.T. Poole, d/b/a Allntym Transit, to withdraw its Application for Class C (Charter) Certificate and rescind Commission Order No. 2018-17. So moved.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Thank you, Commissioner Elam.

You've heard Commissioner Elam's motion. Is there any discussion?

1  
2  
3  
4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25  
26  
27  
28

[No response]  
Hearing none, all those in favor of  
Commissioner Elam's motion, please, say "aye."

**COMMISSIONERS:** Aye.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Any opposed?

[No response]  
Motion carries.

**DR. SPEARMAN:** Mr. Chairman and Commissioners,  
this completes the agenda for today's Business  
Meeting.

**CHAIRMAN WHITFIELD:** Thank you, Dr. Spearman.  
We will see you on April 11th. Meeting  
adjourned.

[WHEREUPON, at 2:27 p.m., the proceedings  
in the above-entitled matter were  
adjourned.]

---



Date: 4/10/18

Jo Elizabeth M. Wheat, CVR-CM/M-GNSC  
Court Reporter ~ Public Service Commission of South Carolina  
803.896.5100 ~ [Jo.Wheat@psc.sc.gov](mailto:Jo.Wheat@psc.sc.gov)